UNITED STATES 3
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY |0 FF 112
REGION IX
75 HAWTHORNE STREET
SAN FRANCISCO, CA %4105 %
In the matter of. ) Docket No. TSCA-09-2007- 0002
CONSENT AGREEMENT
Cesar Chavez Learning and
Community, Inc. FINAL ORDER PURSUANT TO
SECTIONS 22,13 AND 22.18
Respondent
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L CONSENT AGREEMENT
Complainant, the Director of the Communities and Ecosystems Division, United States
Bnvironmental Protection Agency, Region 9. (“EPA™) and Respondent Cesar Chavez Learning
Community, Inc. (hereafter “Respondent™) seck to settle this case and consent to the entry of
this Consent Agreement and Final Order (“CAFO").

1. This administrative proceeding is initiated pursuant to Section 207 of the Toxic |
Substances Control Act, 15 U.S.C. § 2601, et. seq. (hercinafter referred to an “TSCA" or the
“Act"), and the Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the Admintstrative Assessment Ibf
Civil Penaitics, 40 C.F.R. Part 22,

2. This proceading involves the Asbestos Hazard Emergency Response Act ("AHERA")
also known as title IT of TSCA and the regulations promuigated thereunder. Section 203(b) of
TSCA, 15U.5.C. § 26a3(b), required the Administrator of EPA 1o, among other things,

promulgate regulations prescribing procedures for determining whether asbestos-containing
matcrial is present in a school building under (he yuthority of a local educational agency
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(“LEA™). Section 203(1) of TSCA, 15 U.S.C. § 2643(j), required the Administratar of EPA o,
among other things, promulgate regulations requiring each LEA to develop and implement 20
MMMMMMWMW.M. These regulations are
sodified at 40 C.F.R. Part 763, Subpart E (the “Subpart E regulations™).

3. Section 763.85(a)(2) of the Subpart E rogulations statcs that any building lcased or
acquired on or after October 12, 198E, that it to be used as & school building shall be inspected as
described under paragraphs (2)(3) and (4) of section 763,85 prior to use as a school building, and
Mhmaemﬂﬂmmrgmyuu&fmmhﬂpmdwﬂmm:mhmlbuﬂdmahm.
such buildings shall be Inspected within 30 days after commencement of such use. Scction
763.93(g)(2) of the Subpart E regulations provides that each LEA shall maintain in its
administrative office a complete, updated copy of & management plan for each school under its
administrative control or direction. 40 CFR. § 763.93(g)(3) of the Subpart E regulations
provides that each school shall maintsin in jts administrative office 2 complete, updated copy of
the management plan fur et school. 40 C.F.R. § 763.93(g)(3).

4. Sections 207(a)(1) and 207(a)(3) of TSCA, 15 U.S.C. § 2647(a)(3), provides that sny
LEA that fails to conduct an inspection, or fails to develap a management plan, pursuant to
regulations under Section 203(i) of TSCA, 15 U.S.C. § 2643(). is liable for a civil penalty.
Section 207(2) of TSCA, 15 U.S.C. §§ 2647(a), the Federal Civil Penaltics Inflation Mﬁm
Act of 1990 (as amended by the Debt Collection Improvement Act of 1996), and the subsequent
Civil Monetary Penalty Inflation Adjustment Rule, 40 CF.R. Part 19, authorize a civil penslty of
(1) not more than $5,000 for cach day during which a violation continues, for violations on or

before January 30, 1997; (2) mtmet;:lnm&tmhdlym;wﬁchlm
continues, for viulations efter January 30, 1997 but on or before March 15, 2004; and (3) not
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more than $6,500 for each dav during which & viclation continues, for viclations after March 15,
2004. _

5. Section 207(a) of TSCA, 15 U.S.C. § 2647(a), further provides that any civil penalty
shall be ussessed] and cullevied in the same manner, and subject to the same provisions, as in the
case of civil penalties assessed and collected under Section 16 of TSCA, 15 U.S.C. § 2615.
Section 16(a)(2)(B) of TSCA, 15 U.S.C. § 2615(0)(2)(B), requires EPA to take intn scconnt the
nahure, circumstances, extent, and gravity of the violation(s), and, with regpect to the violator,
ability to pay, effect on ability to continue to do business, any higtory of prior such violations, the
degree of culpability, and such other matters as justice may require. Section 207(a) states that
any civil penaity collected shall be used by the LEA to dnrnp]y with TSCA Title II, with any
portion remaining unspent to be deposited into the Asbestos Trust Fund, established pursuant to
Section 5 of the Asbestos Hazard Emergency Response Act of 1986, codified at 20 US.C. §
4022, in addition, Section 207(c) of TSCA, 15 U.S.C. § 2647(c), requires EPA to consider the
significance of the violation, the culpability of the vivlalor, including any history of previous
TSCA violations, the ability of the violator to pay the penalty, and the ability of the violator to
continue to provide educational services to the community.

B. AUTHORITY AND PARTIES

6. Respondent holds school chn;tm for Aztlan Academy and Cesar Chavez Middle
School, both of which are Arizona charter schools. Arizona charter schools are public, state-
funded schools constituted within the state of Arizona pursuant to the Asizona Charter School |
Law of 1994, See Arizona Revisad Statutes Bducation Ende § 15-189. Arizona Charter schools

contract with the Arizona State Board of Education, the Arizona State Board for Charter Schools,

or a district to provide an education service.
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7. The authority to take action under Section 207 of TSCA, 15 U.S.C. § 2647, is vested
in the Administrator of the EPA (“Administrator™), By EPA Delegation Order Number 12-2-A,
dated May 11, 1994, the Administrator delegated to the Regional Administrator of EPA Region
X the authority to commence administalive proceedings under TSCA and to sign consent
agrooments memorializing scitlements in such proceedings. By EPA Rogional Order Number
R9 1260.06A dated May 19, 2005, the Regional Administrator of EPA Region IX redelegated
this authority to the Director of the Communities 2nd Ecosystems Division. The Director of the
Communities and Ecosystems Division has the authority to commence and settle an enforcement
action in this matter.

C. COMPLAINANT'S ALLEGATIONS

8. Respondent began operating both the Aztlan Acaderny and the Cesar Chavez Middle
School after October 12, 1988, and before 2002, Respondent owns, Jeases, or otherwise uses, at
the minimutmn, one (1) “schoo! building,” as dcfined in Section 202(13) of TSCA Title I, 15
U.5.C. § 2642(13), and in 40 C.F.R. §§ 762.83, located mx 3376 6™ Avenue, Tucson, Arizona.
Respondent is & “Local Educational Agency” (“LEA™), as defined in Section 202(7) of TSCA
Title II, 15 U.8.C. § 2642(7), and in 40 C.FR. 8§ 763.83.

9. Sectiona 203(i) and 205(d) of TSCA Title lI, 15 U.5.C. § 2643(i) and 2645(d), require
that Respondent, prior to using a building as 2 school after October 12, 1988, conduct an
inspection and have developed a valid asbestos management plan. Section 207(a)(3) of TSCA
Title 1T, 15 U.S.C, § 2647(2)(3), and 40 CF.R. § 763.97(a) make it unlawful for Respondent to
fail to conduct such inspections and develop such an asbestos management plan, and provide that

each separate failure to comply with respect to a single school building constitutes a violation of

Section 207(a)(3) of TRCA Tille 1.
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10. As of June 1, 2006, Respondent had not condueted such inspection, nor had
Respondent developed such an asbestos management plan for cither the Cesar Chavez Middle
School or Aztlan Academy, located at 3376 S. 6™ Street, Tucson, Arizona, operated by
RespondentL

11. Respondent violated Section 207(a)(1) of TSCA Title IL, 15 U.S.C. § 2647(a)(1), by
failing to conduct an inspection, pursuant to Settion 203(h) of TSCA Title II, 15 US.C. §
2643(b), and regulations thereunder at 40 C.F.R. Part 763, Subpart E, for the school buildings
referenced in Paragraph 8 above. .

12. Respondent viclated Section 207(a)(3) of TSCA Title I, 15 U.S.C. § 2647(2)(3), by
failing to develop an asbestos management plan, pursuant to Section 203(i) of TSCA Tide IL, 15
U.S.C. § 2643(i). and regulations thereunder at 40 C.F.R. Part 763, Subpant E, for the school
building referenced in Paragraph £ sbove.

13. To avoid the disruplion uf unlerly educational activities and the expense of
protracted and costly litigation, Respondent. in accordance with 40 C.FR. § 22.18(b)(2), and for
the purpose of this proceeding, (i) admits that EPA has jurisdiction nver the subject matter of this
CAFO and over Respondent; (ji) neither admits nor denies the specific factoal allegations
contained in Section LC. of this CAFO; (iij) consents to any and all conditions specified in this
CAFO; (iv) agrees to pay and consents to the assessment of, the civil administrative penalty
under Section LE. of this CAFO; (v) weaives any right to contest the allegations contained in
Section LC. of this CAFO, including but not limited to its right under Section 16(2)(2)(A) of

TSCA to request a hearing, and (vi) waives the right to appeal the proposed final onder contained
In this CAFO.

I'n re; Cesar Chaver Learning Communily, Inc,, AHERA 2007, pagé 5



E. COMPLIANCE WITH AHERA

14. After EPA’s May, 2006 inspection, Respondent had an inspection conducted by a
gualified inspector and a management plan prepared, and submitted this management plan to
LRA. R:Mm also provided w EPA an accounting of the costs incurred by Respondent in
complying with AHERA. In executing this CAFO, Respondent certifies that it has complied
with AHERA and the AHERA Subpart P repnlations at Aztlan Academy and Cegar Chavez
Middle School and all other facilities under its control which are subject o AHERA
requirements.

F. CIVIL PENALTIES

15. A. Respondent consents to the assessment of a penalty in the amount of
TWO THOUSAND FOUR HUNDRED DOLLARS (§2,400), as specified in this Paragraph as
final settlement and complete satisfaction of the civil claims against Respondent arising from the
facts alieged in Section 1.C. of the CAFO and under the Act, as alleged in Section LC. of the
CATO. |

B. As the BPA-approved costs of compliance with AHERA and AHERA Subpart E for
Respondent are equal to the civil penalty amount in Paragraph 16.A. the costs of compliance
already expended by Respondent shall represent full payment of penalty, .

16. Issuance of this CAFQ does not cmuﬁmu a waiver by EPA of its right to enforce the
terms of this CAFO or to seek other civil or criminal relief for violations, if any, of any provision
of federal law not specifically settled by this Consent Agreement. Nothing in this CAFQ shall
relieve Respondent of its duty to comply with all applicable provisions of the Act, rules

promulgated thereunder, and other Federal, state or local laws or statutes.
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17. The provisions of this CAFO shall be binding on Respondent and on Respondent’s
officers, directors, emuployees, agents, servants, authorized representatives, successors, and
8821gNs.

1B. Each paaty shall bear ils own costs, fees, and disbursements in this action.

19. For the purposes of state and federal income taxation, Respondent shall not claim a
deduction for any civil penalty payment made pursuant to this CARO.

20. This Conszent Agresment constitutes the entire agreement between the Respondent
end EPA. This Consent Agreement and Final Order is for the purpose of fully and finally
gettling the civil claims against Respondent arising from the facts alleged in section 1.C. of this
CAFO. Because the EPA-approved costs of Respondent’s compliance with AHERA and
AHERA Subpart E regulations exceed the civil penalty lability against Respondént for the
violztions alleged in Section LC. of this CAFO, the filing of this CAFO shall constitute full
settlernent and satisfaction of civil penaltv lisbility against Respondent for the violations slleged
in Section L.C, of this CAFO. |

21. In accordance with 40 C.F.R. §3 22.18(b)(3) and 22.31(b), the effective date of this
CAFO shall be the date on which the accompanying Final Order, having heen signed by the
Regional Judicial Officer, is filed

22. The undersigned represcntatives of eash party to this Consent Agreement certify that
each is duly authorized by the party whom he or she represents to enter into the terms and bind
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that party to it.

CESAR CHAVEZ LEARNING COMMUNITY, INC.:

pue 1207 5 Mé&%&a
m&

UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY:

Date: _/ /04 By: ﬂ ‘—‘é
JEFF SCOTT |
Acting Director, Communities and Ecosystems Division
U.S. Environmental Pmtecnm Agmcy,
Region IX

Iu re; Cesar Chaver Learning Cormmunity, Inc., AHERA 2007, page &



IL. FINAL ORDER
IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that this Consent Agreement and Final Order be entered and

that Respondent shall comply with the terms set forth in the Consent Agreement.

.y

Date: .QL@A’-S—

Steven Jawgiel
Regional Judicial Officer
U.S. EPA, Region IX
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
I certify that the original and one copy of the fully executed Consent Agreement and

Final Order Pursuant to 40 C.F.R §§ 22.13 and 22.18 ( Docket No. TSCA-9-2008- 0 0 2 )
against the Cesar Chavez Learning Community, Inc., was filed this day with the Regional
Hearing Clerk, U.S. EPA, Region IX, 75 Hawthome Street, San Francisco, California 941035, and

that a true and correct copy of the same was sent to Respondent at the following address:

Sister Judy Bisignano

Director

Cesar Chavez Learning Community, Inc.
3376 South 6™ Avenue

Tucson, AZ 85713

Certified Mail No. __ 7007 0710 0003 6239 8915

Qauﬂﬂ { (PM - /D- 08

anielle Carr
Regional Hearing Clerk
United States Environmental Protection Agency, Region IX




